
AGENDA 
THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF THE CLAYTON TOWN COUNCIL 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2014 THE CLAYTON CENTER 
6:30 PM COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Jody L. McLeod

2. ADJUSTMENT OF THE AGENDA

3. ACTION AGENDA
a. Draft minutes from the October 6, 2014 meeting.
b. Draft minutes from September 15, 2014 Closed Session.

4. INTRODUCTIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
a. Introduction of new Town of Clayton employee(s).
b. Presentation by Mr. Tim Tunis, CFO for ElectriCities, recognizing

Clayton Public Power with an Excellence in Financial Stability Award.

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS
a. Evidentiary Hearing on SUP2014-85, to review an application submitted by

RNC Entertainment  for an Internet Sweepstakes Operation.

6. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR THE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
a. Presentation of resolution of the 2015 Holiday Schedule.
b. Presentation of resolution of the 2015 Town Council meeting schedule.
c. Schedule public hearing on November 3, 2014 for RZ2014-116 located

at 443 E. Second Street.
d. Adopt Resolution instructing the Town Clerk to review sufficiency of

Petition for Annexation of property on Powhatan and Glen Laurel
Roads.

7. ITEMS CONTINGENT FOR THE REGULAR MEETING
a. Review and approval of budget amendments.

I. Use of certain funds restricted to designated uses. 
II. Carryover fiscal year funding for Electric Meter Conversion Project.

b. Adoption of Resolution Supporting Geographic Information Systems (GIS)
Awareness Day.

c. Warranty and dedication acceptances:
I. Cobblestone Phase 11 

II. LionsGate Phases 3A & 3G

8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

9. OLD BUSINESS



a. No old business.

10. STAFF REPORTS
a. Town Manager

 Quarterly Financial Report.
 Report on parking issue:  Blanche Street

b. Town Attorney
c. Town Clerk

 Calendar of Events
d. Other Staff

11. OTHER BUSINESS
a. Informal Discussion & Public Comment.
b. Council Comments.

12. ADJOURNMENT



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 3a Meeting Date:  10/20/14 

TITLE: DRAFT MINUTES FROM:  October 6, 2014 Regular Session and 
September 15, 2014 Closed Session.    

DESCRIPTION: Minutes. 

RELATED GOAL: Administrative 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Approval. DRAFT 



Transcript Minutes of the 

October 6, 2014 Town of Clayton 

Town Council Meeting 

MAYOR MCLEOD: -- this Regular Meeting of 

the Clayton Town Council to order. I'll ask you to 

stand for the Pledge of Allegiance and remain 

standing for the invocation. 

(Pledge of Allegiance recited.) 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Let us pray. Most 

Gracious and Heavenly Father, we give you thanks 

for the many blessings of this day and we ask now 

that You be with us as we proceed with the business 

for the Town of Clayton. For it's in Your great 

name we pray, amen. 

AUDIENCE: Amen. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Are there any adjustments 

of the agenda? 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: I have none. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: All right. No 

adjustments, then we'll move on to the consent 

agenda. Any discussion? 

MALE SPEAKER: Move to approve. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: Mr. Mayor? 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Mr. Grannis? 



MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: I had one 

question with respect to the -- or two questions 

actually, with respect to the Interlocal Agreement 

with Johnston County and the Town of Clayton with 



respect to utility services for Grifols. In the 

agreement, in Article 3, there's a paragraph that 

says "the County will invoice the Town monthly for 

base charges, any applicable surcharge and capital 

surcharge. The Town will pay the County the 

invoiced amounts within 20 days from the day the 

Town receives the invoice." Typically, is -- is 

that normal, or would it be 30 days? 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: 20 days would be 

fine. Some of our turnarounds are now 15 days, so 

that would not create a cash flow problem 

foreseeable (inaudible). 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: Okay. And then 

the -- 

TOWN ATTORNEY ROSS: Mr. Grannis, just 

you -- as a procedural point, I would recommend we 

take this off the Consent Agenda if we're going to 

have discussion regarding it. We may, at the end, 

decide we don't need to do that, but it -- just as 

a procedural point, you may want to take it off the 

Consent Agenda -- off the Consent Agenda and do it 

separate. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Okay. So we'll remove 

Item 3e from the Consent Agenda, and I'll entertain 

a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 



presented. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: So moved. 

COUNCILMAN HOLDER: Second. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: We have a motion and a 

second for approval. Any other discussion? All in 

favor say aye? 

(Voice vote.) 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Opposed, like sign. 

Motion carries. Now, we'll revert back to Mayor 

Pro Tem Grannis's inquiry on the Interlocal 

Agreement, Item 3e. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: So I understand 

that 20 days, I'm good with that. The next 

paragraph; "charges shall be reviewed at least 

annually by the County and adjusted if required 

with 60 days written notice. It is the County's 

intent to adjust charges only on an annual basis, 

however, changes in GTI's wastewater quality or 

characteristics which result in process upsets the 

County or the County's wastewater treatment plant 

or require higher energy, chemical or labor costs 

and/or noncompliance with the NPDES permit limits 

shall be justification for more frequent 

adjustments and charges." How is that determined, 

and do we have any input? 



TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: It would be 

determined, Mr. Grannis, by what's called at-works 

[ph] analysis and they would -- what they would do 

is they would look at the nature of the flow that 

they would see. There are certain primers that 

have been worked into the agreement and that will 

also be recruited with Grifols or GTI's industrial 

user permit, and those limits would be set with 

certain assumptions about the cost of treatment. 

And so really what we're doing is we're 

looking to analyze the cost of the electricity. We 

would be analyzing the nature of their wastewater 

and if it were higher concentration than what those 

limits have set, then the assumption would be there 

that that leads to higher costs and there would be 

some allowances that would be made for the 

additional cost for treatment of the higher 

concentration of wastewater above the primer 

(inaudible) provided. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: And I would 

assume that we would have some input regarding that 

before we get the notification of increase. 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: Well, based on our 

relationship with Johnston County, I'm sure there 

would be back and forth dialogue, but in any event, 



the way -- this is the agreement when we and the 

County (inaudible) separate agreement that has been 

previously adopted between Grifols, and the 

language that we have in our agreement with Grifols 

is equivalent to the language that we have in our 

agreement -- or proposed agreement with Johnston 

County. So, as the County can enforce certain 

additional surcharges on us, we can also enforce 

them on Grifols. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: Okay. I'm good. 

With that I would recommend approval. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Second. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: I have a motion and a 

second for approval of Item 3e, the Interlocal 

Agreement with Johnston County and the Town of 

Clayton. Is there any other discussion? All in 

favor of the motion, say aye. 

(Voice vote.) 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Opposed, like sign? 

Motion carries. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER BEARD: Mayor 

McLeod, who made the second? 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Mr. Satterfield. Next up 

under old business is an amendment to the cemetery 

ordinance. 



TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: All right. This is 

the item that we discussed in our work session. 

It's included under the old business part of the 

agenda (inaudible) consent agenda because we did 

have a modification between the version that was 

submitted to the Council's work session and the 

version before you for approval this evening. 

The primary purpose of this amendment is 

to change the nature of the (inaudible) 

relationship in transferring cemetery plots from 

(inaudible) a D instrument to a licensed allowed -- 

a licensed agreement. And so when someone 

purchases a plot in our cemetery going forward, 

what they would be purchasing is a permission to 

use the cemetery for its intended purpose for grave 

sites, internments. 

And so that is that meat and potatoes of 

what is proposed before you, but while we were 

doing an amendment we did put in one additional 

provision. What we found is that from time to time 

there are funeral home tents that are left on-site 

for an extended period of time, so we have added 

into the amendment that (inaudible) tents must be 

removed within five days after closing the graves. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Mr. Satterfield? 



COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: I had a talk 

with the gentleman today -- yesterday actually, 

about the possible transferring a lot to someone 

else. And, at this point, they'll just have 

permission from the Town to use that lot. How do 

they turn around and transfer that -- that to 

somebody else? 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: Well, in the past 

when it was a deed we would be involved in that 

transaction as well and so what we would do in the 

future, and we can refer to the attorney for more 

details, but in simple terms there would be a 

relicensing that -- the two parties would come 

before us and there would be a relicensing showing 

the transfer from the original purchaser to the 

(inaudible) provided. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Is there a form 

that we could use to make that easier for people to 

do that? 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: We -- we have a 

licensing form. I don't -- I do not think that we 

have a different form that we can use for resale or 

relicensing of a plot, but that's something that I 

can check. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Thank you. 



MAYOR MCLEOD: All right. Anyone else? 

TOWN ATTORNEY ROSS: Here, I will just -- 

I will just point out that the -- on the issue of 

transfer. The amended text provides for a -- to 

transfer a use license. The original purchaser 

must (inaudible) a transfer of cemetery plot form. 

So there is a form -- 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Okay. 

TOWN ATTORNEY ROSS: -- that encompasses 

the transfer once that's provided to the Town. As 

I understand, how it's written, and I think this is 

how it will be operationalized, that then the 

Public Works and Utilities Director, the designee, 

essentially issues a new license to the person that 

is doing the transfer -- that (inaudible). So they 

want to know for transfer of a license that you 

intend to; it's not just someone walking in and 

saying I get it. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Okay. 

TOWN ATTORNEY ROSS: So there's a 

process. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Okay. Good. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: All right. Do we need a 

motion on this? 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: One -- one -- yeah, 



we need a motion and action, and just to point out 

that Councilman Thompson did find a typo, so in the 

final version we will correct the typo. There will 

not be any content changes in the version that we 

see and the (inaudible) version. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: All right. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Move to approve. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: Second. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: We have a motion and a 

second to approve the amendment to the cemetery 

ordinance. Is there any discussion? All in favor 

of that motion, let it be known by saying aye? 

(Voice vote.) 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Opposed, like sign? 

Motion carries. Next up is the adoption of amended 

bylaws for the Library Board. 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: Mr. Mayor and 

Councilmembers, I believe Nancy Medlin worked with 

Councilman Holder and Mrs. Starnes our library 

director on this particular item, and this is 

presented for your consideration this evening. 

COUNCILMAN HOLDER: Move to approve. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Second. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: We have a motion and a 

second to approve the adoption of the amended 



bylaws for the Library Board. Is there any other 

discussion? All in favor of that motion say aye. 

(Voice vote.) 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Opposed, like sign? And 

the motion carries. Next up under new business is 

the Clayton Fire Department General Mutual Aid 

Agreement update. 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: Mr. Mayor, this is 

an item that I apologize for not including on the 

work session agenda, but it is a fairly routine 

item for us to have. (Inaudible) agreements for 

the various departments with us and to which we 

provide support. This allows us to pool resources 

and get a major (inaudible) and so it is time for 

that agreement to be updated in the next week and 

we present for you this evening. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Move to approve. 

COUNCILMAN THOMPSON: Second. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: We have a motion and a 

second to approve the Clayton Fire Department 

General Mutual Aid Agreement. Is there any other 

discussion? All in favor of the motion say aye. 

(Voice vote.) 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Opposed, like sign? 

Motion carries. And next up on the agenda is the 



discussion of the appointment of the Town Clerk. I 

think we should appoint one. 

MALE SPEAKER: I think (inaudible) -- 

MALE SPEAKER: Second (laughter). It's a 

great idea. I know she thinks it's a great idea. 

MALE SPEAKER: What do you think, Stace? 

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER BEARD: Yes 

(laughter). 

MAYOR MCLEOD: We are very excited that 

after a intense process that the Committee has 

found the perfect match for the Town of Clayton's 

Town Clerk position, and that candidate is with us 

this evening. Her name is Kimberly Moffett. She 

is currently the deputy clerk for the Town of 

Garner. She already has her certified municipal 

clerk's accreditation. I was looking for the right 

word. And we're very excited. She's amazing and 

she's smart and she's organized and she is really, 

really excited about coming back to Clayton. She 

had worked prior in Clayton with the Clayton 

Chamber of Commerce for a few years and so it's 

almost like a homecoming, but we're really excited 

to have you here and if you'd like to come up and 

say hello and say something for the record and who 

knows, if we don't get the minutes done before 



you're actually in the seat, you may get to write 

your own minutes (laughter). 

MALE SPEAKER: Short meeting though. 

MS. MOFFETT: Thank you very much. I 

just wanted to thank everybody in the Town Council 

and the Town (inaudible). I'm excited about this 

opportunity and I thank you so much for it. I'm 

excited about being part of this great team and 

just excited to be in the community that I love and 

I'm just very excited and looking forward to it. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Well, we are too. 

MS. MOFFETT: Thank you very much. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: We are very excited, 

Kimberly. Thank you. 

MS. MOFFETT: Thank you. 

MALE SPEAKER: Thank you. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: And when's your start 

date? 

MS. MOFFETT: That would be October 20th. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Okay. 

MS. MOFFETT: Uh-huh. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Awesome. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: That will be 

baptism under fire. 

MS. MOFFETT: That's correct (laughter). 



MAYOR MCLEOD: We're looking forward to 

it. Thank you for joining us this evening. 

MS. MOFFETT: Thank you. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Yes. Mr. Grannis? 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: Kimberly, I 

just -- I wasn't able to get here earlier to 

welcome you. I was actually flying back from San 

Francisco, but I'm very excited as well and I'll be 

sure to keep your seat nice and warm for you, so 

welcome to the team. 

MS. MOFFETT: Thank you very much. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: So I believe we need to 

make a motion to set -- 

COUNCILMAN HOLDER: I'll make a motion to 

approve the appointment of the Town Clerk. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: All right. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: Second. 

COUNCILMAN HOLDER: Kimberly Moffett. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: All right. We have a 

motion and a second for approval of Kimberly 

Moffett as our new Town of Clayton Town Clerk. Is 

there any other discussion? All in favor of the 

motion say aye. 

(Voice vote.) 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Aye. I never get to do 



that part, but I just thought I would for 

posterity. And opposed, like sign? Motion 

carries. Welcome. 

Okay. Next up is staff reports, 

beginning with the manager. 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: No additional 

reports. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Town Attorney? 

TOWN ATTORNEY ROSS: The only report I 

have is on the Red & White Building and (inaudible) 

court date (inaudible) November 10th. Likely it 

will be scheduled for Wednesday the 12th, but it's 

starting that session (inaudible). 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Awesome. Town Clerk? 

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER BEARD: I just 

wanted to let you guys know how I've enjoyed 

sitting up here with you, but I'll be glad to pass 

the baton. I also wanted to let you know that 

tomorrow and the next day we will have more than 

200 seniors from all across the State of North 

Carolina here for the State Final Senior Games in 

bocce and cornhole. They are very seriously 

competitive sports and we have folks coming from 

literally the mountains to the coast. 

And some of them come in busloads, but 



our bocce courts have actually just been redone 

with new sort of irrigation and drainage underneath 

them, because usually it pours down rain and it's 

freezing cold for these events, but hopefully 

because we've made the expense of putting 

irrigation underneath the courts it won't rain of 

course. So hopefully it'll be good weather 

tomorrow, but if you guys ever want to stop by the 

next two days; I mean, they go from 9:00 until 6 

o'clock at night. 

We have wonderful volunteers from the 

community because it takes volunteers -- the bocce 

scoring is apparently very complicated. We have a 

large contingent from Caterpillar, one of our big 

corporate citizens that comes in and volunteers and 

helps out and the seniors just love it. They say 

they love playing and some of them arrived today 

and were out there practicing, but it's a great 

event and we're happy to host it here in -- and the 

Senior Games have said that we will continue to be 

the host for these two events for the finals 

because people do have such a great time here and 

we have a great facilities and great 

accommodations. 

MALE SPEAKER: That's super, great. 



MAYOR MCLEOD: And I'll also just give a 

brief shout out of appreciation to Stacey. She 

supported me and Stephanie in hosting this past 

Friday, a little over 150 third graders from River 

Dell Elementary School that thoroughly enjoyed 

their educational trip in Clayton and enjoyed the 

fire department and the library and coming to see 

the cultural arts center and coming to learn a 

little bit more about town government and how it 

works. So, Stacey, thanks. I think they were -- 

they were definitely educated when they left, but 

you -- my hair kind of stands up on my head 

sometimes anyway, but I think by the time they were 

done (laughter) -- but it was great and I think, 

you know, the parents actually learned probably 

just as much as -- as the kids. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER BEARD: 

Absolutely. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: So thank you for that, 

Stacey. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER BEARD: Oh, 

thank you. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: Okay. Any other staff? 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR NAEGELEN: 

Just real quick; I'm Bruce Naegelen, Downtown 



Development Coordinator, and also a member of the 

Special Events Committee in the Town of Clayton. 

And we had a late (inaudible) application for the 

Clayton (inaudible) Homecoming Parade which is 

coming up on October 17th. The Committee approved 

and they are going to (inaudible) roads will be 

closed and (inaudible) the Committee to approve it. 

(Inaudible) PD has already approved it, which it 

has. It's October 17th. It's going to start about 

4 o'clock. It comes up Fayetteville Street, goes 

down Main Street -- goes right on Main, right on 

2nd, just right on Lombard, right on 2nd and then 

left back on Fayetteville back to the high school. 

And this is pretty much the same thing that's been 

for (inaudible). 

MALE SPEAKER: Move to approve. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: He doesn't have to have an 

approval. 

MALE SPEAKER: Oh. 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR NAEGELEN: 

This is just information. 

MALE SPEAKER: Oh, okay. Okay. 

MALE SPEAKER: (Inaudible). 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR NAEGELEN: 

(Inaudible) for each of you if you're not doing 



anything on October 14th. The VA is hosting a -- 

the Main Street Mingle. It's a (inaudible) 

networking opportunities for the businesses 

downtown. We're going to bring them up to the 

Arbors at East Village in the clubhouse (inaudible) 

party downtown and so if you -- if you'd care to 

see what it's like and be one of the (inaudible) 

most everybody's seen it already, but we'll give 

you an opportunity to see it if you haven't. Also, 

you can meet some of our businesses, and especially 

some of our newer folks (inaudible). 

MAYOR MCLEOD: All right. Thank you, 

sir. I'll now open the floor for informal 

discussion or public comment. All right. No one 

wishing to speak, I'll turn it over to Council for 

their comments. Mr. Grannis? 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: As most of you 

know, we have yet to do a review for the Town 

Manager and we currently now have a new form and 

format and Steve is putting some finishing touches 

on that and once that's done, which I would assume 

(inaudible) if I'm not mistaken probably in the 

next two weeks maybe? 

TOWN MANAGER BIGGS: About that. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: Okay. And I'll 



make -- be making distribution with a notation of 

our timeline to be getting -- giving it back. And 

because I'm so (inaudible) so I will continue to 

combine everything into one. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: So this year, whoever is 

late in turning it in, you have to buy drinks for 

the rest of those who got it in time. 

MALE SPEAKER: Won't be me. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: Oh no, it's much 

greater than that. 

MALE SPEAKER: It won't be me. 

MAYOR PRO TEM GRANNIS: But it's a 

surprise. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: It's a surprise. Anyone 

else? Jason? 

COUNCILMAN THOMPSON: We've -- I've been 

working with the Triangle Agency (inaudible) and 

the various agencies that they do. There's a 

project they've done called Music for the Mind and 

you may have seen some stuff on buildings, on 

YouTube videos or whatever; people (inaudible) of 

assisted living facilities that'll get them with 

iPods and with the music that they like on it. And 

there are people right here in North Carolina, 

they've been doing a pilot project with it who have 



not spoken in years and put the headphones and they 

just come alive and they start -- start to speak, 

start to sing. Because works a different part of 

your mind than the normal speech comes from. So 

I'm pushing real hard to try to get that 

(inaudible) Johnston County specifically to our 

assisted living facilities we have in Clayton. So 

I'll keep you updated on that, but I'm pushing on 

that. It is a -- it's a -- it's a worthwhile 

program. There's an awesome YouTube video. You 

can click up on it and see the -- the people just 

come alive when they hear the music from the era 

and that they grew up in and so they are working 

hard trying to get that brought out here. 

MALE SPEAKER: That's great. 

MAYOR MCLEOD: That's great. I'll be 

attending the League of Municipalities Conference 

starting Saturday afternoon and be back on Tuesday 

afternoon, and that's pretty much all I know right 

now. All right. If nothing else to come before 

us, I'll entertain a motion to adjourn. 

COUNCILMAN SATTERFIELD: So moved. 

COUNCILMAN HOLDER: Second. 



Duly adopted by the Town Council this 15th day of September 2014 

while in regular session. 

_______________________________ 

Jody L. McLeod, 

Mayor 

ATTEST 

________________________________ 

Kimberly Moffett, CMC 

Town Clerk 
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TITLE: INTRODUCTION OF NEW TOWN OF CLAYTON EMPLOYEE (S). 

DESCRIPTION: Introduction(s). 
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ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Introduction(s). N/A. 
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Agenda Item: 4b Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE:  Presentation by Mr. Tim Tunis, Chief Financial Officer for ElectriCities 

DESCRIPTION: Town of Clayton/Clayton Public Power Award for Excellence in 
Financial Stability. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Presentation Award 



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 5a Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE:  Evidentiary Hearing SUP2014-85 

DESCRIPTION:  Holding of an evidentiary hearing for the purpose of reviewing and 
deciding SUP 2014-85 submitted by RNC Entertainment for an 
Internet Sweepstakes Operation. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

9-2-14 Tabled Packet 

10-20-14 Hearing Packet 



Town Council 

STAFF REPORT

Application Number: SUP 2014-85 (Special Use Permit) 
Project Name: RNC Entertainment - Internet Café at 12809 US 70 Bus Hwy W 

NC PIN / Tax #: 165909-06-0707 / 05G02001B 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: Thoroughfare Overlay District 
Applicant:  Tony Ro 
Owners: 813 Town Centre Boulevard Holdings LLC 

Neighborhood Meeting:  Held July 18, 2014 
Public Noticing: Property Posted July 18, 2014 

PROJECT LOCATION:   The project is located at 12809 US 70 Bus Hwy W, in the Town Centre (Walmart) 
Shopping Center Plaza, in the old Blockbuster site and adjacent to Capital Bank. 

REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting approval of a Special Use Permit to allow Video Sweepstakes Operations 
business at 12809 US 70 Bus Hwy W, within the Town Centre (Walmart) Shopping Center. 

SITE DATA: 

Acreage: 1.82 acres  

Present Zoning: B-3-S (Highway Business Special Use District) 

Existing Use: Commercial (storefront is vacant) 

DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Proposed Uses: Video Sweepstakes Operations 

Buildings: One existing building. Business is in a storefront within a 10,858 SF multi-tenant 
building. 

# of Machines: 80 

Square footage: 5,664 SF 

Required Parking: 28  (1 space per 200 SF or 1 space per 3 seats, whichever is greater. In this case 
5,664 SF/200 = 28) 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-1545 
Fax:  919-553-1720 
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Proposed Parking: Utilizing existing parking.  The site has 59 parking spaces available.  

Access/Streets:  Access is through an existing driveway off of Town Centre Blvd (internal circulation 
within the Town Centre Shopping Plaza).  No site modifications are proposed. 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 

North:  Zoning: Highway Business (B-3) 
Existing Use: Funeral Home & Cemetery 

South:  Zoning: Highway Business Special Use District (B-3-S) 
Existing Use: Commercial  (Walmart) 

East: Zoning: Highway Business Special Use District (B-3-S) 
Existing Use: Commercial (Capital Bank) 

West: Zoning: Highway Business Special Use District (B-3-S) 
Existing Use: Commercial (Vacant) 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 

Overview 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Special Use Permit to allow a Video Sweepstakes Operations business 
at an outparcel within the Walmart Shopping Center. The outparcel has a small multi-tenant building and the 
proposed use will operate out of one of the vacant commercial spaces available.  Usually a Conditional Use 
Permit is required to operate a Video Sweepstakes Operation, but because this site is in a Special Use District, 
the new use must receive a Special Use District to locate here.  A separate Conditional Use Permit is not 
required. 

Site of proposed Internet Cafe 
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Video Sweepstakes Operations are defined in the UDC (Section 155.305(GG)) as follows: “Any business 
enterprise, whether as a principal or accessory use, where persons utilize electronic machines, including but not 
limited to computers and gaming materials, to conduct games of chance, including sweepstakes, and where 
cash, merchandise or other items of value are redeemed or otherwise distributed, whether or not the value of 
such distribution is determined by electronic games played or by predetermined odds.  This term includes, but is 
not limited to internet cafes, internet sweepstakes, and cybercafes. This does not include any lottery approved 
by the State of North Carolina.” 

The code also sets the following restrictions: 

1) Unaccompanied persons under the age of 18 are prohibited from entering the premises.
2) The hours of operation shall be limited to Sunday through Thursday 9 am to 1am and Friday and

Saturday 9am to 2am.
3) A maximum of up to 100 machines may be permitted at each establishment.

The applicant has requested the following: 
1) # of Machines: maximum of 80

Associated Plans 
Site Plan # 02-27 was the initial site plan for the Blockbuster site. 

The Walmart Plaza was originally approved under Special Use Permit # SUP 02-01. 

State Law related to Internet Sweepstakes 
The applicant has indicated they fully intend to operate within the confines of State laws and will comply with 
any state and local regulations that apply to internet sweepstakes, now or in the future. The issuance of a 
Special Use Permit is not evidence that the Town has determined the applicant is operating within the state law. 

Parking Considerations 
Based on current parking requirements, the subject site is conforming in terms of the number of required 
spaces.  
Total Building = 10,800 square feet 
Internet Café = 5,664 SF 

- At a rate of 1 space per 200 SF, 28 spaces required 
Remaining Building = 5,136 SF (mix of office and retail) 

- At the rate of 1 space per 200 SF (conservative since office requires less parking than retail), 26 spaces 
required 

Total parking required for building: 54 spaces 
Total parking provided: 59 spaces 

Consistency with the Unified Development Code 
The proposed development is consistent with and meets the applicable requirements of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), so long as the Special Use Permit is approved.   

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The use is compatible with the surrounding uses in the shopping plaza (retail, service, restaurant, and other 
commercial businesses). 
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Landscaping and Buffering 
No additional landscaping or buffering is required. 

Signs 
All signage will be required to comply with Town of Clayton UDC requirements.  

Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
None. 

CONSIDERATIONS: 

 The Town Council approves Special Use Permits.

FINDINGS: 

When considering a Special Use Permit application, The Town Council shall consider specific Findings of Fact. A 
Special Use which fails to meet any of these Findings shall be deemed adverse to the public interest and shall 
not be approved. The applicant has addressed the Findings expressly established by Chapter 155.711 (I) of the 
UDC. Please refer to the “Attachment 1” for the applicant’s response. 

CONDITIONS: 
Staff recommends that if the Town Council reaches positive conclusions on the required findings of fact, the 
approval of the petition be subject to the following conditions: 

1. The hours of operation shall be limited to Sunday through Thursday 9 am to 1am and Friday and
Saturday 9am to 2am.

2. Unaccompanied persons under the age of 18 are prohibited from entering the premises.

3. Prior to the issuance of a Privilege License, the applicant shall provide a final floor plan identifying the
number of seats provided in the facility for gaming.  This facility is limited to a maximum of 80
seats/machines.

4. A maximum of 25% of the window and door areas may be covered with signage or other opaque
materials.

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval with the conditions in the staff report, which are the same conditions in this staff report. See 
Attachment 2 – Planning Board Recommendation Form. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Findings of Fact, 2) Planning Board Recommendation Form 3) Aerial and Zoning Map, 4) Floor Plan, 5)

Application Materials, 6) Neighborhood Meeting Materials 
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Attachment 1 - Findings of Fact SUP 2014-85
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Town of Clayton 
Special Use Permit Application 

Hearing Procedure 

1. HEARING.  The Mayor shall call the hearing and announce the case.

2. RULES OF PROCEDURE.  The procedure by which testimony may be
given shall be announced by the Town Attorney.  The Town Attorney
shall be responsible for keeping all testimony within acceptable legal
guidelines.

3. OATHS.  Oaths shall be administered to all speakers.  A statement of
oath shall be signed by all persons taking the oath.

4. STAFF REPORT.  The Staff shall give its report.

5. APPLICANT TESTIMONY.  The applicant shall be called to present his
case.  The applicant has the burden to provide testimony and
evidence in support of the request.  If the applicant or his
representative is not present to be sworn, the Mayor may call for a
vote of the members present to continue the hearing until the next
regular meeting or, in the absence of testimony supporting the
application the Council may choose to deny the application.  The
applicant shall be notified of such action.  The Mayor shall be
responsible for keeping the testimony relevant and factual.  No
questions shall be asked by the Town Council at this time.

6. OPPOSITION TESTIMONY.  Those speaking in opposition to the
application shall be called upon to present their case.  The Mayor
shall be responsible for keeping the testimony relevant and factual.
No questions shall be asked by the Town Council at this time.

7. APPLICANT REBUTTAL.  The applicant and/or those in support of the
application shall be provided an opportunity to rebut testimony
provided by the opposition.  The Council may also ask questions of
the applicant at this time.

8. OPPOSITION REBUTTAL.  Those in opposition to the application shall be
provided an opportunity to rebut testimony provided by the
applicant.  The Council may also ask questions of the opposition at
this time.

9. COUNCIL INQUIRY.  The Council may ask any additional questions of the
applicant, opposition, or staff at this time.  The Mayor shall be
responsible for keeping questions and responses relevant and
factual.
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10. DELIBERATION.  The Mayor shall call the Council into deliberation.
Once called into deliberation no person may address the Council and
no questions may be asked by Council to the public.

11. UTILITY ALLOCATION (WHEN APPLICABLE).  In the event of pending action
on a utility allocation request related to the case and there being no
additional testimony, the Council shall take action on a utility
allocation in accordance with related policies and procedures.

12. ACTION-FINDINGS FOR DECISION.  Once discussion of the evidence has
been completed and action taken on the utility allocation (when
applicable); each finding shall be discussed in turn and a motion,
second and vote shall be made for each finding by selecting one of
the three alternatives.  A majority vote shall prevail.  All four findings
shall be addressed.

13. ACTION-APPLICATION.  Once all four findings have been decided and
based on the results of the evaluation and vote on those findings, the
Council shall make a motion and vote to approve or deny the
application.



Town of Clayton 
Town Council Motion Sheet 

Special Use Permit Application No. 2014-85 

The Town Council shall decide the matter of Special Use Permit Application Number 
2014-85 by motion and vote on each of the following four findings of fact. Any motion to 
find against the application must be supported by statement of specific reasons or 
conclusions reached in support of the motion. 

Based on the substantial and competent evidence and testimony presented to the Town 
Council on this matter, the Council finds and concludes that Special Use Permit 
Application SUP 2014-85: 

Finding One of Four (check one): 

Will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed 
and developed according to the plans as submitted and approved. (Applicant 
meets the criteria for approval). 

Will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed 
and developed according to the plans as submitted and approved with the 
following additional stated conditions: (Applicant meets the criteria for approval 
upon acceptance of the noted conditions.) 

Will materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed 
and developed according to the plan as submitted and approved for the following 
stated reasons: (Applicant fails to meet the criteria for approval.) 

Finding Two of Four (check one): 

Meets all required specifications and conforms to the standards and practices of 
sound land use planning and the Town of Clayton Code of Ordinances, Unified 
Development Ordinance or other applicable regulations. (Applicant meets the 
criteria necessary for approval.) 



 Meets all required specifications and conforms to the standards and practices of 
sound land use planning and the Town of Clayton Code of Ordinances, Unified 
Development Ordinance or other applicable regulations with the following 
additional stated conditions: (Applicant meets the criteria necessary for approval 
upon acceptance of the noted conditions.)  

 
  

 

 

 
 Fails to meet all required specifications or fails to conform to the standards and 

practices of sound land use planning and the Town of Clayton Code of 
Ordinances, Unified Development Ordinance or other applicable regulations in 
the following ways or for the following reasons: (Applicant fails to meet the 
criteria necessary for approval.) 

 
  

 

 

 
 
Finding Three of Four (check one): 
 

 Will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will not 
be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent properties or other 
neighborhood uses. (Applicant meets the criteria necessary for approval.) 

 
 Will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will not 

be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent properties or other 
neighborhood uses upon compliance with the following stated conditions: 
(Applicant meets the criteria necessary for approval upon acceptance of the 
noted conditions.) 

 
  

 

 

 
 Will substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and/or will be 

detrimental to the use or development of adjacent properties or other 
neighborhood uses in the following ways or for the following reasons: (Applicant 
fails to meet the criteria for approval.) 

 
  

 

 

 



Finding Four of Four (check one): 
 

 Would not adversely affect the general plans for the development of the Town of 
Clayton nor violate the character or existing standards for development of the 
adjacent properties. (Applicant meets the criteria necessary for approval.) 

 
 Would not adversely affect the general plans for the development of the Town of 

Clayton nor violate the character or existing standards for development of the 
adjacent properties upon compliance with the following stated conditions: 
(Applicant meets the criteria necessary for approval upon acceptance of the 
noted conditions.) 

 
  

 

 

 
 

 Would adversely affect the general plans for the development of the Town of 
Clayton or violates the character or standards for the development of the 
adjacent properties in the following ways or for the following stated reasons: 
(Applicant fails to meet the criteria necessary for approval.) 

 
  

 

 

 
 
 
Once all findings have been decided one of the two following motions must be made: 
 
 
Motion to Approve: Based upon satisfactory compliance with the above four stated 
findings and fully contingent upon acceptance and compliance with all conditions as 
previously noted herein and with full incorporation of all statements and agreements 
entered into the record by the testimony of the applicant and applicant’s representative I 
move to approve Special Use Permit Application # _________.  
 
 
Motion to Deny: Based upon failure to meet each of the above four stated findings and 
for reasons stated therein, I move to deny Special Use Permit Application #_________. 
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TOWN OF CLAYTON 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT 2014-85 

GRANTED 
 

On the date listed below, the Town Council for the Town of Clayton met and held an 

evidentiary hearing to consider the following application: 

 

Applicant: Tony Ro 

 

Owner/Owners: Tax ID Number NC PIN 
813 TOWN CENTER BLVD HOLDINGS 05G02001B 165909-06-0707 

   

 

Property Location: 12809 US 70 Bus Hwy W, Clayton NC 

 

Proposed Use of Property: Video Sweepstakes Operation    

 

Meeting Date:  September 2, 2014 

 

 

Having heard all the evidence and argument presented at the hearing, the Town Council finds 

that the application is complete, that the application complies with all of the applicable 

requirements of the Clayton Zoning Ordinance for the development proposed, and that, 

therefore, the application to make use of the above-described property for the purpose 

indicated is hereby approved, subject to all applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and 

the following conditions: 
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 (1) The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the 

plans submitted to and approved by this Board, a copy of which is filed in the Planning 

Department office. 

 

 (2) If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held invalid 

or void, then this permit shall be void and of no effect. 

 

If this permit authorizes development on a tract of land larger than one acre, nothing 

authorized by the permit may be done until the property owner properly executes and returns 

to the Town the attached acknowledgment of the issuance of this permit so that the Town may 

have it recorded in the Johnston County Register of Deeds office. 

 

As set forth in Section 155.711 of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Town Council 

imposed the following additional conditions of the Special Use Permit: 

 

1. The hours of operation shall be limited to Sunday through Thursday 9 am to 1am and 

Friday and Saturday 9am to 2am.    

2. Unaccompanied persons under the age of 18 are prohibited from entering the 

premises. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a Privilege License, the applicant shall provide a final floor 

plan identifying the number of seats provided in the facility for gaming.  This facility 

is limited to a maximum of 80 seats/machines. 

4. A maximum of 25% of the window and door areas may be covered with signage or 

other opaque materials. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town has caused this Special Use Permit to be issued in its 

name, and the undersigned, including all of the known property owners of the property above 

described, do hereby accept this Special Use Permit, together with all of its conditions, as 

binding on them and their successors in interest. 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 

BY: _________________________________________ 

Jody L. McLeod, 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________(SEAL) 

Nancy Medlin, Deputy Town Clerk 

NORTH CAROLINA 

JOHNSTON COUNTY 

I, ________________________, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that Nancy Medlin 

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that she is Deputy Town Clerk of 

the Town of Clayton and that by authority duly given and as the act of the Town, the 

foregoing instrument was signed in its name by Jody L. McLeod, Mayor of the Town of 

Clayton.  

Witness my hand and notarial seal this the _____ day of ___________, 2014. 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public 

_____________________________________ 

Commission expires 

_____________________________________ 

County of Commission 
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I, ________________________________________, applicant for the above Special Use 

Permit, does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Special Use Permit issued by the Clayton 

Town Council.  I hereby acknowledge that no work may be done pursuant to this permit 

except in accordance with all of its conditions and requirements and that this restriction shall 

be binding on them and their successors in interest. 

________________________________  

Applicant’s Signature 

NORTH CAROLINA 

________________COUNTY 

I, ________________________, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, do hereby 

certify that _____________________________ (registered agent on behalf of Sheetz, Inc.) 

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

instrument. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this the _____ day of ____________, 2014. 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public 

_____________________________________ 

Commission expires 

_____________________________________ 

County of Commission 



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 6a Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE: Town of Clayton 2015 Holiday Schedule 

DESCRIPTION: Schedule consistent with State of North Carolina Holiday 
Schedule. 

RELATED GOAL: Administrative 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Review Schedule 



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION - 2015 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the Town to follow the holiday schedule provided by the 
State of North Carolina for its employees; and 

WHEREAS, the below 2015 Holiday Schedule was retrieved from the State of North 
Carolina website http://www.osp.state.nc.us/holsched.htm.: 

2015 Holiday Schedule 

Holiday Observance Date Day of Week 

New Year's Day January 1, 2015 Thursday 

Martin Luther King Jr.'s 
Birthday 

January 19, 2015 Monday 

Good Friday April 3, 2015 Friday 

Memorial Day May 25, 2015 Monday 

Independence Day July 3, 2015 Friday 

Labor Day September 7, 2015 Monday 

Veteran's Day November 11, 2015 Wednesday 

Thanksgiving November 26 & 27, 
2015 

Thursday & Friday 

Christmas December 23, 24 & 
25, 2015 

Wednesday, Thursday, & 
Friday  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of Clayton hereby 
adopts the 2015 Holiday Schedule as presented. 

Duly adopted this  day of  2014, while in regular session. 

___________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

ATTEST: Mayor 

___________________________________ 
Kimberly Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 



TOWN COUNCIL 
AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 6b Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE: Town of Clayton 2015 Meeting Schedule 

DESCRIPTION: Standard meeting schedule with adjustments for known conflicts 
with holidays and events. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Review Schedule 



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION – 2015 COUNCIL SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, the Clayton Town Council exists to conduct the business of the citizens; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Clayton Town Council meetings are held the first and third Monday of 
the month at 6:30 PM in the Council Chambers of the Town Hall, unless 
otherwise noted; and 

WHEREAS, each meeting of the Clayton Town Council is open to the public, except as 
provided by NC G.S. 143-318.11; and 

WHEREAS, the Clayton Town Council may amend the yearly meeting schedule in 

accordance with NC G.S. 143-318.12: 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
2015 CALENDAR 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETINGS 

January 5, 2015 & January 20, 2015 (Tuesday) 

February 2, 2015 & February 16, 2015 

March 2, 2015 & March 16, 2015 

April 6, 2015 & April 20, 2015 

May 4, 2015 & May 18, 2015 

June 1, 2015 & June 15, 2015 

July 6, 2015 & July 20, 2015 

August 3, 2015 & August 17, 2015 

September 8, 2015 (Tuesday) & September 21, 2015 

October 5, 2015 & October 19, 2015  
--NCLM Annual Conference October 11-13, 2015; Winston Salem, NC-- 

November 2, 2015 & November 16, 2015 

December 7, 2015 & December 21, 2015 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of Clayton hereby adopts 
the 2015 Clayton Town Council Schedule as presented. 

Duly adopted this  of  2014 while in regular session. 

____________________________________ 

Jody L. McLeod 
ATTEST: Mayor 
____________________________________ 

Kimberly Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 



Town of Clayton 
Town Council – 2015 Meetings 

January 5, 2015 
January 20, 2015 Tuesday 

February 2, 2015 
February 16, 2015 

March 2, 2015  
March 16, 2015 

April 6, 2015  
April 20, 2015 

May 4, 2015 
May 18, 2015 

- NCLM Town Hall Day: Hosted in 
Raleigh – Date TBA – 

June 1, 2015 
June 15, 2015 

July 6, 2015 
July 20, 2015 

August 3, 2015 
August 17, 2015 

September 8, 2015 Tuesday 
September 21, 2015 

October 5, 2015 
-NCLM Annual Conference: 
Hosted in Winston-Salem, 
October 11-13, 2015-  
October 19, 2015 

November 2, 2015 
November 16, 2015 

December 7, 2015 
December 21, 2015
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TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 6c Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE: Rezoning Case RZ2014-116 

DESCRIPTION: Rezoning application for property at 443 E. Second Street. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Staff Presentation Application Packet 



Town Council 

STAFF REPORT

Application Number: RZ 2014-116 (Rezoning) 
Project Name: Rezoning of 0.13 acres at 443 E Second Street to B-1 

NC PIN / Tag #: 166917-11-5431 / 05011047 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: Downtown Overlay District 
Applicant:  Battle Moore Robertson 
Owner: Battle Moore Robertson 

Neighborhood Meeting:  Held September 4, 2014  
Public Noticing: Property posted September 12th   

Adjacent Property Notice Letters will be mailed prior to the Council Hearing in 
accordance with §155.702(D) 

Planning Board Meeting: September 22, 2014 

PROJECT LOCATION:   The property is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of E Second Street 
and Hardee Street. 

REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting approval to rezone 0.13 acres at 443 E Second Street from 
Neighborhood Business (B-2) to Central Business (B-1).  

SITE DATA: 

Acreage: 0.13 acre 

Present Zoning:  Neighborhood Business (B-2) 

Proposed Zoning: Central Business (B-1) 

Existing Use: Vacant 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 

North:  Zoning: Central Business (B-1) 
Existing Use: Commercial (Lipscomb’s Daycare, Lewis Tire & Auto) 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-1545 
Fax:  919-553-1720 
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South:  Zoning: Neighborhood Business (B-2) 
Existing Use: Commercial (Compare Foods grocery store / shopping center) 

East: Zoning: Office & Institutional (O-I) 
Existing Use: Morning Glory Inn Bed & Breakfast 

West: Zoning: Neighborhood Business (B-2) 
Existing Use: Commercial (Laundromat) 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 

Overview 
The applicant is requesting approval for rezoning of the subject property from Neighborhood Business (B-2) to 
Central Business (B-1).  The site is currently vacant and includes one parcel totaling 0.13 acres.  The site is 
approximately 54 feet wide and 106 feet deep. 

The primary reason for this rezoning has to do with required building setbacks.  The building setback and 
dimensional requirements for each are shown below. Dimensions are for setbacks adjacent to non-residential 
zoning districts/uses: 

Zoning 
District 

Setbacks (min) Building Standards (max) 

Street/Front Side Interior Side Street Rear Bldg 
Height 

Building 
Coverage 

Impervious 
Surface 

B-1 0* 0 0 0 50 100% 100% 
B-2 20 10 10 20 35 50% 75% 
*Maximum street/front setback is 10 feet in the B-1 zoning district

The B-2 building setbacks would not permit the building to be brought up closer to the street (which would be 
consistent with existing buildings to the west), nor would it permit the building to be constructed to connect to 
the existing building to the west.  Thus, the current zoning district is prohibiting the site from being developed in 
a way that is consistent with immediately adjacent properties.  The B-1 district does permit a greater building 
height. 

Staff supports consistency in building construction and placement, and as such is in support of this request. 

Further, on an infill lot this small it could be difficult to fit both a commercial building and parking lot on the site. 
The B-1 zoning parking requirements are quite flexible and account for the fact that there is ample street 
parking, providing greater flexibility in site design and construction. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The permitted uses in both the B-2 and B-1 zoning districts are provided as an attachment. Generally, uses 
permitted in the B-1 and B-2 district are quite similar and staff does not feel the differences in permitted uses 
would reduce compatibility with surrounding properties.   

Though the other commercial properties on the south side of E Second Street on this block are zoned B-2, 
properties immediately across the street are zoned B-1. Further, at least two buildings (Clayton Glass and the 
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laundromat) are non-conforming structures due to the required building setbacks in the B-2 zoning district 
(these buildings were likely built prior to the assignment of the B-2 zoning district). 

As noted above, the rezoning would allow the site to be developed in a way that is more consistent with the 
construction of lots immediately adjacent to the west, bringing the building closer to the sidewalk and allowing 
the possibility of a connection to the building to the west.  Staff feels the B-1 zoning would allow a development 
that is more appropriate for this site. 

Consistency with the Strategic Growth Plan 
The request is consistent with the following Objectives of the Strategic Growth Plan: 

- 1.4 More Investment Dollars Downtown by Private Sector 
- 2.1: Balanced Development: Old & New 
- 3.6 Encourage Redevelopment of Deteriorated Areas (encouragement of in-fill development) 

The requested rezoning is not consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan “Proposed Land Use Map,” which 
identifies the property as Residential-Medium (see attached map). However, staff feels the application of this 
residential Proposed Land Use Category is not appropriate for properties on this block fronting E Second Street, 
as all properties are commercial in use and staff would argue should continue to be as Clayton’s downtown 
continues to develop. It is for this reason that despite the inconsistency with the Proposed Land Use Map, staff 
would support the rezoning. 

Consistency with the Downtown Master Plan 
The Downtown Master Plan encourages construction of commercial buildings to be placed closer to the street. 
Because the B-1 zoning district supports a reduced front building setback, staff feels the rezoning would place 
the lot in closer compliance with the goals of the Downtown Master Plan. 

CONSIDERATIONS: 

• The applicant is requesting a rezoning from B-2 to B-1.
• Rezonings are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board shall make a written recommendation

to the Town Council.
• When adopting or rejecting the rezoning, the Town Council shall approve a statement describing

whether its action is consistent with an adopted plans and policies of the town and explaining why the
board considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning. 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  Approval (see attached) 

ATTACHMENTS: 1) Planning Board recommendation, 2) Zoning Map, 3) Aerial Map, 4) Proposed Land Use Map, 
5) List of uses allowed in the B-1 and B-2 zoning district, 6) Application, 7) Neighborhood Meeting Materials
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Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

Proposed Land Use Map (Source: 2008 Strategic Growth Plan)
Rezoning at 443 E Second Street - B-2 to B-1

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Battle M. Robertson
Property Owner: Battle M. Robertson
Parcel ID Number: 166917-11-5431
Tag #: 05011047
Address: 443 E Second St
File Number: RZ 2014-116
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§155.202(B)(2), Table 2-1 Use Regulations Table.
Uses permitted in the B-1 and B-2 zoning district, as of 9-16-14. 

ZONING 
USE TYPE B-1 B-2 
RESIDENTIAL USES 
Adult Care Home (2-6 Adults) 
Adult Care Home (7-12 Adults) S S 
Adult Care Home (13+ Adults) S S 
Alley Loaded House 
Apartments S S 
Boarding House P 
Child Care Home 
Manufactured Home 
Manufactured Home Park 
Nursing Home (Congregate Living Facility) S 
Two family House 
Townhouse S S 
Security/Caretaker Quarters 
Single Family House 
Upper-story Residence P P 
Zero Lot Line House 
PUBLIC AND CIVIC USES 
Assembly, Not For Profit 
Cemetery 
Church or Place of Worship C 
College or University 
Day Care (Supervision for 3-8 ) 
Day Care (Supervision for 9+) P C 
Government Service P P 
Hospital or Medical Center 
School (Elementary or Secondary) 
School (Technical, Trade or Business) P 
RECREATIONAL USES 
Entertainment, Indoor C C 
Entertainment, Outdoor 
Fitness Center C C 
Golf Course 
Gun Range S S 
Park, Active S S 
Park, Passive C C 
Stable, Private 
AGRICULTURAL USES 
Agriculture, Livestock 
Agriculture, Sales and Service 

Uses permitted in the B-1 and B-2 Zoning Districts, 9-16-14   Page 1 of 3 



COMMERCIAL USES 
Adult Oriented Business 
Bed and Breakfast P P 
Car Wash/Auto Detailing C P 
Contractor Office C 
Contractor Storage Yard 
Convenience Store with Gas Sales C C 
Creative Studio P P 
Financial Institution P P 
Funeral Home P P 
Hotel/Motel S 
Kennel C 
Laundry Services C 
Lounge, Cocktail S 
Microbrewery P 
Newspaper Publisher 
Office, General P P 
Office, Medical P P 
Outdoor Seating/Sidewalk Cafe P C 
Pawn Shop 
Radio or Television Studio 
Restaurant, Drive-Through C C 
Restaurant, General P P 
Retail Sales, General P 
Retail Sales, Neighborhood P P 
Self-storage Facility C 
Service, General P 
Service, Neighborhood P P 
Tattoo Parlor 
Towing Service and Storage 
Vehicle Repair or Service 
Vehicle Sales and Rental 
Veterinary Clinic C C 
Video Sweepstakes Operations C C 
INDUSTRIAL USES 
Building Supplies, Wholesale 
Crematorium 
Gas and Fuel, Wholesale 
Laboratory, Research 
Manufacturing, Limited 
Manufacturing, General 
Manufacturing, Heavy 
Research and Development 
Warehouse, Freight Movement 

Uses permitted in the B-1 and B-2 Zoning Districts, 9-16-14   Page 2 of 3 



UTILITIES 
Recycling Center 
Renewable Energy Facility 
Telecommunication Facility S S 
Utility, Minor P P 
Utility, Major 
Waste Service 

Key: 
A blank cell in the use table indicates that a use is not permitted in the respective district. 
P – Permitted 
C – Conditional Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Planning Board (PB) ( § 155.710) 
S – Special Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Town Council (TC) ) ( § 155.711) 

Uses permitted in the B-1 and B-2 Zoning Districts, 9-16-14   Page 3 of 3 

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0%23JD_155.710
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0%23JD_155.710
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TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 6d Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE: Annexation of Property on Powhatan & Glen Laurel Roads 

DESCRIPTION: Consideration of Resolution instructing the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of submitted petition for 
annexation. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Staff Presentation Petition 



Clayton – Premier Community for Active Families 
www.townofclaytonnc.org 

ANNEXATION PETITION 2014-10-01 
Glen Laurel Road and Vinson Road 
Multiple Parcels (total of 13) 
Owners:  CGC Properties LLC & Powhatan Rd Limited Partnership 
Non-Contiguous; 61.30 +/- acres 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 

A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-58.1 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition 
was received on October 1, 2014, by the Town of Clayton; and 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-58.2 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Clayton deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton that: 

The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Town 
Council the results of her investigation. 

Duly adopted this  day of  2014, while in regular session. 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST: Jody L. McLeod,  

Mayor 

___________________________________ 
Kimberly Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 
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NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

-Annexation Map

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant(s): CGC Properties LLC & Powhatan 
Road Limited Partnership
Property Owner(s): CGC Properties LLC & 
Powhatan Road Limited Partnership
Parcel Number(s) 05I04012, 05I04012A, 05I04012B, 05I04012C,
05I04012D, 05I04012E, 05I04012F, 05I04012G, 05I04012H,
05I04012I, 05E99007S, 05I04199R & 05E99007H
File Number(s): Annex 2014-10-01
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TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7a Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE: Two Budget Amendments 

DESCRIPTION:  Two budget amendments are proposed.  The first, a General 
Fund Amendment, would allocate funds that are otherwise 
restricted for special purposes due to the source.  Use of 
these funds would not impact on available fund balance.  The 
second is an amendment to the Electric Fund that would 
allocate carryover funding in the Electric Fund for completion 
of the AMR project due to spanning multiple fiscal years. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Review GF Amendment 
EF Amendment 



Clayton – Premier Community for Active Families 
www.townofclaytonnc.org 

Town of Clayton 

Amendment to the FY 14-15 Budget 

BE IT HEREBY ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF 

CLAYTON that the following amendments shall be made to the FY 14-15 Budget: 

Fund: General Fund 

Previous Revised 

Line Item Appropriation Adjustment Appropriation 

Expenditures 

100-60-74-52 42 Park Beautification 

     $10,000 +1,500  $11,500 

100-68-02-52 60 Equipment Purchase 

     $1,500 +1,339  $2,839 

100-65-02-52 26 Training & Travel 

     $6,400  +950  $7,350 

100-65-75-52 60 Equipment Purchase 

 $18,257 +5,000  $23,257 

Revenue 

100-40-00-48 99  Fund Balance Appropriated 

$1,507,864 +2,839  $1,510,703 

100-65-02-45 20 Grant Funds-Miscellaneous 

 $0  +5,950  $5,950 

Explanation: Amendment necessary to reflect the appropriation of Fund Balance to utilize 

unspent restricted revenues received in the prior fiscal year for the following items: 1.) 

Completion of the Clayton Community Center Community Garden with proceeds from NC 

Recreation & Park Association Nourishing NC. 2.) Purchase a new computer and monitor 

for the Library History Room with proceeds from Friends of Sybil. Also, budgeting grants 

awarded to the Clayton Center by the Johnston County Visitors Bureau for equipment 

upgrades ($5,000) and South Arts for showcase expo opportunities ($950).     

Duly adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2014 while in regular session. 

_____________________________________ 

Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 

Attest: 

________________________________ 

Kimberly Moffett, CMC 

Town Clerk 
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Town of Clayton 

Amendment to the FY 14-15 Budget 

BE IT HEREBY ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF 

CLAYTON that the following amendments shall be made to the FY 14-15 Budget: 

Fund: Electric Fund 

Previous Revised 

Line Item Appropriation Adjustment Appropriation 

Expenditures 

310-57-65-52 58 Electric Meters 

     $22,168 +6,220  $28,388 

Revenue 

310-57-00-48 99   Fund Balance Appropriated 

 $11,493 +6,220  $17,713 

Explanation: Amendment necessary to reflect the appropriation of Fund Balance to utilize 

unspent funds from the prior fiscal year to complete the 3-Phase ERT Meter Pilot Project in 

the current fiscal year.     

Duly adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2014 while in regular session. 

_____________________________________ 

Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 

Attest: 

________________________________ 

Kimberly Moffett, CMC 

Town Clerk 
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TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7b Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE: Adoption of Resolution supporting Geographic Information Systems 
(GIS) Awareness Day 

DESCRIPTION: As Titled 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Discussion Resolution 
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TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7c Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE: Warranty and Dedication Acceptances 

DESCRIPTION: Cobblestone Phase 11 and LionsGate Phases 3A and 3G 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

10-20-14 Review Memos from Inspector 
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TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 10 Meeting Date: 10/20/14 

TITLE:   Staff Reports 

DESCRIPTION: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 
10-20-14 N/A           Blanch St email
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